ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE SPECI AL COVM TTEE ON NATURAL GAS DEVELOPNENT
Fai r banks, Al aska
August 25, 2006
9:08 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair
Senat or Thomas WAgoner
Senator Kim Elton

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Lyda G een
Senator Gary W1 ken
Senat or Con Bunde
Senat or Fred Dyson
Senat or Bert Stednman
Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senat or Donny O son
Senat or Ben Stevens
Senat or Al bert Kookesh

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senator CGene Therriaul t
Representative David Quttenberg
Representative Bill Stolz
Representati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative M chael Kelly
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

COW TTEE CALENDAR

Round tabl e di scussion of Port Authority Pl an.
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

DAVI D VAN TUYL, Comrerci al Manager

Al aska Gas G oup

BP

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on Port Authority project.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -1- August 25, 2006



DAN DI CKI NSON, CPA

Consul tant to the Governor

Ofice of the Governor

PO Box 110001

Juneau, AK 998811-0001

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on Port Authority project.

M chael Menge, Conm ssi oner

Departnent of Natural Resources

400 W1 I oughby Ave.

Juneau, AK 99801-1724

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on Port Authority project.

KEN GRI FFI N, Deputy Conm ssi oner

Depart ment of Natural Resources

400 W1 | oughby Avenue

Juneau, AK 99801-1724

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on Port Authority project.

DR, ANTHONY FI NI ZZA, Consul t ant

Econ One Research, Inc.

Suite 2825

Three Al en Center

333 Cay Street

Houston, TX 77002

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on Port Authority project.

ROGER MARKS, Econom st

Departnent of Revenue

PO Box 110400

Juneau, AK 99811-0400

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on Port Authority project.

STEVEN B. PORTER, Deputy Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Revenue

PO Box 110400

Juneau, AK 99811-0400

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on Port Authority project.

JI M VH TAKER, Chai r man

Al aska Gasline Port Authority;

Mayor, Fairbanks North Star Borough

PO Box 71267

Fai r banks, AK 99707

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on Port Authority project.

Bl LL WALKER, General Counsel and Project Manager

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 2- August 25, 2006



Al aska Gasline Port Authority

411 4th Avenue, Suite 200

Fai r banks, Al aska 99701

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on Port Authority project.

RADOSLAV SHI PKOFF, Director

Greengate LLC

2001 L Street NW Suite 901

Washi ngton, DC 20036

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on Port Authority project.

EDWARD J. TWOVEY

Morrison & Foerster

Counsel to the Governor

Washi ngt on, DC

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed on FERC i ssues.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS called the Senate Special Committee on
Nat ural Gas Devel opnent neeting to order at 9:08:27 AM Present
at the call to order were Senators Thomas Wagoner, Kim Elton,
and Chair Ral ph Seeki ns.

ROUNDTABLE DI SCUSSI ON OF PORT AUTHORI TY PLAN

9:08: 27 AM

CHAI R SEEKI NS recapitul ated the question under discussion at the
cl ose of Thursday's neeting. The issue was whether FERC would
all ow construction costs to be rolled into the tariff if the
state builds a gas |line larger than the capacity it has
commtments for. They discussed building a larger line to Delta
Junction with the idea that it would eventually connect to the
Lower 48, until which tinme it would carry only 1.2 Bcf/d to the
LNG pl ant there.

EDWARD J. TWOMEY, Morrison & Foerster, Counsel to the Governor,
said that 20 years ago he would have said that FERC would
probably refuse the application, or say to cone back when the
line is full; but today FERC is less insistent that applicants
be able to show the line will be 90-100 percent full. If an
applicant wants to build a pipeline twce as big as he has FT
commitments for, FERC would likely allow it, but require himto
bear the cost of the excess capacity. That could be done two
ways:

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 3- August 25, 2006



1. If a 12" line would have been appropriate for existing Bcf,
one could get experts to calculate the cost differential of
a 48" pipe vs. 12" and back that cost out of the rate base.

2. Alternatively, and probably how FERC would do it, one could
| ook at the pipeline as if it would be full. For exanple
if the total cost of service is calculated to be $100
(including operating cost, incone tax, and return on rate
base) and it would take 50 units to fill the pipe, FERC
woul d cal culate the tariff at $100 cost of service divided
by the 50 units that would be going through the pipe, so
each unit woul d bear $2 of cost.

If you apply the exanple in nethod two to the Port Authority’s
proposal, only % of the pipe would be full for the first three
years, so AGPA would be transporting only 12.5 of the 50 units.
FERC would allow it to charge only $2 per unit for a total of
$25, but AGPA or its investors would have to eat the $75 that is
not subscribed wuntil they get commtnents for that unused
capacity.

DAVID VAN TUYL, Commercial WMnager, Alaska Gas Goup, BP,
coomented that its FERC attorneys gave him a response very
simlar to M. Twoney’s.

9:15: 58 AM

Bl LL WALKER, Ceneral Counsel and Project Manager, Al aska Gasline
Port Authority, clarified that AGPA |ooked at a larger pipe
because it is best for Al aska based on the vast resources on the
slope. Discussion with its FERC counsel indicated that it is a
possibility; but their project does not depend on it to be
econoni c.

9:17:17 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS said his question is whether they can build a
bi gger pipe and nake it econom c.

RADOSLAV SHI PKOFF, Director, Geengate LLC, said that he was on
the call with their FERC counsel, who said that it is not only
possible, but that he thinks it is the only plan FERC w |
approve, because the pipe is properly sized for the comercial
devel opnent of the field and nakes comercial sense for all
parties. FERC won't overrule a commercial agreenment that nakes
sense.

9:18:14 AM

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -4- August 25, 2006



CHAI R SEEKI NS asked what comrercial agreenent M. Shipkoff was
referring to.

MR. SHI PKOFF replied that he is not suggesting that they are
sizing the pipe to accommpdate future expansion, the fact that
they are designing a pipe that accommobdates future expansion
means they nust have had discussions with the shippers (whoever
they may be) such that they anticipate an expansion. He asked
why they would design it this way if they didn't know an
expansi on was com ng.

CHAI R SEEKINS said that is his question exactly.

MR. SHI PKOFF retorted that, if there is not a reasonable
expectation of expansion, it neans the highway project is not
pr oceedi ng.

CHAIR SEEKINS said that his sole purpose is to look at this
proposal through the eyes of his constituents and determ ne what
is in their best interests. He asked M. Shipkoff if they have
had talks on that comrercial agreenent, or if he anticipates
tal ks, because the only four shippers that he is aware of are
the three producers and the state of Al aska.

MR. SHI PKOFF responded that there are four shippers today; who
potential shippers mght be in the future he did not know.

CHAIR SEEKINS interjected that he knows that Anadarko plans on
an exploration effort in the future, but there are only four
now. He asked where AGPA is at on discussions with them

MR. SH PKOFF answered that they would like to engage in
conversation about commercial gas supply; clearly, they will not
have a project w thout such discussions.

JIM WH TAKER, Chairman, Alaska Gasline Port Authority, agreed
with M. Shipkoff that, if there is no conversation, there is no
gas. He said that the legislature, given its |legal nandate, and

the adm nistration, should understand that and, if there is
increnental value in a Port Authority or other simlar project,
should ensure that gas supplies are made available. If the

| egislature and the admnistration are unwilling to do that,
then whatever is in the best interests of the three mgjor
producers will proceed, and that mght nean doing nothing for
another three years, or doing sonething that strips significant
value from the state’'s share in a deal. He said that AGPA does
not believe that is acceptable; there is another option and the

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 5- August 25, 2006



| egislature has the responsibility to ensure that the option is
given fair vetting.

9:22:28 AM

STEVEN B. PORTER, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue,
said that he appreciates the state’'s responsibility and, as the
Port Authority nentioned yesterday, the only way to succeed with
the Port Authority plan is to cut a comercial deal with the
producers first.

CHAIR SEEKINS said that, as he understands it, at sone point
there has to be a determi nation as to whether or not the project
will be regulated by FERC. He asked M. Twoney at what point in
the process that woul d happen.

MR. TWOMEY replied that, assumng the Port Authority continues
to assert that it is not subject to FERC regulation, it is not
cl ear when FERC would step in; but it would be sonetine before
the Dbeginning of construction. He said that the nore he
considers it, the nore convinced he is that FERC will try to
take control of the Port Authority project, both the pipeline
and the LNG termnal. He referenced an article by G eenberg
Traurig on the Energy Policy Act of 2005, which strengthened
FERC s control over LNG facilities. It reads in part, “The act
anmends the Natural Gas Act [NGA] by granting the conm ssion the
exclusive authority to approve or deny applications for the
siting, constructi on, expansi on, and operation of LNG
termnals.”

9:26:31 AM

Wth regard to the pipeline itself, M. Twney said he
understands the Port Authority’s argunent, but believes that it
is msreading the NGA, which also states that FERC has excl usive
authority over sales and the transm ssion of gas in interstate
commerce. He believes that the NGA intends that municipalities
will be outside its authority unless they choose to do those
things that are specifically within FERC jurisdiction.

MR. WALKER provi ded sone background on this issue. He said they
nmet with FERC assistant general counsel in Washington DC about
four years ago and explained that they believe AGPA's project is
FERC exenpt under section 2 of the Natural Gas Act. They were
advised to speak with FERC s general counsel, who verbally
acknow edged that they were probably right.

9:29:40 AM

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 6- August 25, 2006



He said that AGPA has since retained Hogan and Hartson, which
performed a thorough analysis and concluded that AGPA is indeed
exenpt. They did this to accelerate the |oan guarantee process.
At this point, AGPA could attenpt to obtain a declaratory order
that they are FERC exenpt; but they intend instead to sit down
with FERC within the next 30 days and discuss it with them |If
it looks like it wll be a long drawn-out battle, they' Il
reconsi der their plan.

9: 30: 52 AM

CHAI R SEEKINS said that, according to Dr. Finizzas report, the
advantage of the Port Authority project is Net Present Value
(NPV). This project can get gas to market three yrs earlier if
all of the hurdles are overcone in the tinme frane required, and
he is trying to determine if that is really possible. He said he
wants to believe it is FERC exenpt, but if it is not, he asked,
does it lose its econom c advant age.

MR. WALKER responded that they |look at the 3-year (maybe nore
than 3 year) advantage as the result of work already done by
Yukon Pacific. It is not related to FERC, but to work that has
been done on fuel order permts, gathering soil sanples, core
sanples, performng air quality studies etc. AGPA s advantage
doesn’t hinge on the FERC exenpti on.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked whether, if we end up with a commerci al
agreenent to build a larger pipe to Delta Junction, sonme of the
permtting would be tied together and on the sane tineline, such
as the permts from Prudhoe Bay to Delta, and whether there
woul d be two certificates of public conveni ence or just one.

9:33: 56 AM

MR. WALKER answered that they will have to talk to FERC and do
what 1is nost expeditious. He thinks that, if there is any
certificate at all, it will be only one.

9:35:14 AM

MR. WH TAKER re-enphasi zed that the downstream regul atory regine
is FERC controlled. Every receiving termnal wll be FERC

regulated, so it 1is wunderstood that anything downstream of
Valdez is FERC. Wth regard to upstream regulation, that is yet
to be determ ned.

9: 36: 09 AM

MR, SHI PKOFF clarified that the Costa Azul termnal is regul ated
by CRE (Com sion Regul adora de Energia ) rather than FERC

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -7- August 25, 2006



ROGER MARKS, Econoni st, Departnent of Revenue, pointed out that
the EI'S (Environnmental |Inpact Statement) that Yukon Pacific did
20 yrs ago was for a different project that was not FERC
regulated. If this is under FERC regulation, it is very possible

that a new EIS will be required, which will add about two years
to the process. Additionally, he thinks that a 20-year-old EI S
will be considered out of date by NEPA (National Environnenta

Policy Act).

MR. TWOVEY added that M. Marks is correct, because inplicit in
t he 2004 Al aska Natural Gas Pipeline Act are specific provisions
for the timng of EIS.

9:38: 03 AM
MR. WALKER said that consultants who are famliar with the NEPA
process and the permts, have said that the EIS will need to be

updat ed, not replaced, whether it is FERC regul ated or not.

9: 38: 45 AM

SENATOR WAGONER prefaced his question by saying that he believes
AGPA has an option on a permt for siting of an LNG facility in
Val dez. He asked if any studies have been done on that siting
due to changes in the industrial standards and reconmendations
regarding |l ot sizes since the explosion in Al geria.

MR. WALKER answered that they have looked into it and their
permts conply with requirenents for an exclusionary zone.

9: 39: 53 AM

SENATOR WAGONER asked if, in case they cannot cone to a
comercial agreenment in a reasonable anobunt of tinme, there has
been any interest by the three majors or any other conpanies, in
t aki ng over the right-of-way that AGPA now controls.

MR. WALKER replied they have not been approached by anyone about
their exclusive option to date.

9:41:10 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS asked if there were any further questions or
comrents related to FERC

MR, TWOVEY commented that he does not dispute M. Walker’s
statenent that AGPA is FERC exenpt; they may be exenpt because
they are a municipality. It does not follow that when they
engage in FERC jurisdictional activities they do not becone
subj ect to FERC jurisdiction.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 8- August 25, 2006



9:42: 40 AM

MR. WALKER said that he appreciates that clarification. He knows
that, although they are a nunicipality, they could becone FERC
regul ated through involvenent in certain activities outside the
state; but they have maintained involvenent to remain within the
FERC exenption. They know where the boundaries are and believe
they are well within them

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if the boundary is at Valdez before it gets
on the ship.

MR. WALKER answered that the sale would take place in the state
of Al aska.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked M. Walker to clarify that the boundary is
that the sale takes place in Al aska and the nol ecules transfer
ownership before they | eave the state.

MR. WALKER agreed that is correct.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whether the Port Authority would be invol ved
in the transportation of gas on the ships.

MR. WALKER answered that, as far as ownership of the ships or
gas in the transport process, no.

9:44:17 AM

DAN DI CKI NSON, CPA, Consultant to the Governor, asked M. Twoney
where he thinks FERC will draw the boundary in this project. If
the gas ends up outside the state, would FERC regulate only the
activity that occurs outside Al aska, or would it consider anyone
involved in the process as engaged in interstate commerce and
t heref ore under FERC jurisdiction?

9:44: 42 AM

MR. TWOVEY replied that he thinks FERC would | ook very closely
at the situation M. Val ker post ul at ed. The gas is
unquestionably going into interstate comerce, and selling at
the border seens to be an artificial way to avoid FERC
regul ation. He thinks they' d blow right through that argunent.

9:46: 00 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked who deci des.

MR, TWOMEY answered that FERC would assert jurisdiction and, if
the party objected, it would go to court and get an injunction.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -9- August 25, 2006



9:46: 33 AM

MR. MARKS said he wanted to address an issue regarding the
econom ¢ anal ysis done by Econ One. Shipping costs are big part
of the LNG project, and Econ One nust have used the Port
Authority’ s shipping costs, which assune that the LNG tankers
built donestically in the 1980's could be reflagged. Wen these
ships were built 25 yrs ago, the Maritinme Admnistration (MARAD)
had a Construction Differential Subsidies (CDS) programin place
because U.S. shipyards were not conpetitive wth shipyards
wor | dwi de. Ships built under this program were built for foreign
trade and were not allowed to conpete in the donestic trade. The
Jones Act is quite clear that donmestically built Jones-Act ships
that were flagged for foreign trade, cannot be reflagged for
donestic trade. It is possible to get a tenporary waiver for
pur poses of national defense and for passenger ships, but it can
only be reflagged for comercial activity through an act of
Congress, which is no sinple thing.

He said that the Department of Revenue had a report prepared by
Wlson, Gllette and Conpany, a maritinme economcs firm in
Washi ngton DC, that |ooked at the political climte for getting
Jones Act ships reflagged. They concluded that it would be very
difficult due to stiff resistance fromthe shipping industry and
uni ons. Shi pyards have a presence in every coastal state and are
active in state politics in those states. So, this project would
need to build new ships in the U S., which would add significant
time and about a billion dollars to the project, negating any
NPV advant age.

9:50: 53 AM

MR. WALKER said that they retained the best maritinme counse
they could find in Washington DC, and were advised that it would
require an act of Congress; but both the Maritinme Engineers
Beneficial Association (MEBA) and the Seafarers |International
Union (SIU) have provided Menoranduns of Understanding (MOU s)
to work with AGPA in the reflagging process. They are anxious to
put their menbers to work, and U S. Shipyards typically don't
get involved. Totem OCcean Trailer Express (TOTE) proposed
bringing a foreign LNG ship builder to a U S. shipyard to build
new ships if necessary, and thinks that it would be econoni c.

He said that he worries because those who stand to benefit nost,
qgui ckly chall enge every suggestion and solution they offer. It’s
just tiring. They don’t make things up, they get advice fromthe
best attorneys and experts at every step.

9:54: 04 AM

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 10- August 25, 2006



CHAI R SEEKI NS responded that, while it nay be tiring for him it
is the first time sone of the l|egislators have heard this, and
that is why they are neeting.

MR. WALKER responded that he appreciates the fact that it is
bei ng di scussed, but AGPA has spent the last four years clinbing
some very tall nountains; try talking sonmeone into putting
mllions of dollars into a project when it doesn’t have any gas.

9:54:51 AM

MR. SHI PKOFF said that the Port Authority was approached by the
conpany that owns the ships in question, a U S. conpany and 75
percent shareholder in the largest LNG shipper in the world,
that has been in the LNG shipping business for 25 yrs. He said
they are working with AGPA to reflag those ships and have been
given a tineline of one to two years.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked if that takes an act of congress.
MR. SHI PKOFF confirmed that it does.

9:56: 26 AM

MR. MARKS encouraged the committee to read the Wlson, Gllette
report. He said that MEBA is discussed in the report as a fairly
insignificant union with little political influence and that the
two larger wunions, SIU and Anmerican Mritime Oficers (AMO)
woul d offer considerable resistance. He offered to have M.
Wl son neet wwth the commttee to address the issue in detail.

MAYOR WHI TAKER said he wanted to pick up where M. Wl ker |eft
off regarding the hurdles AGPA has continued to cross. He said
one of the biggest is a very uncooperative admnistration. |If
there were problems with FERC, Jones Act shipping, or the IRS

one would think that the state would be cooperative and hel pfu

in dealing with them |Instead, the response is continual,
i ncredi bl e resi stance!

He said he appreciates the opportunity to conme before the
conmmttee and, if they had received this type of cooperation
t hroughout the process, the Port Authority project and Al aska’s
gas woul d be much further along than it is today.

9:59: 06 AM

MR. PORTER said he agrees with nuch of what Mayor Wi taker said.
He has been a proponent of noving the Port Authority’ s plan into
a project managenent style of process, hiring a project nanager
and beginning to work toward overcoming the hurdles. The state

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -11- August 25, 2006



should financially and verbally support that nethodology; but
part of that is naking sure that the parties are all on the sane
page. For exanple, it would have been helpful to the state to
know t hat reflagging would take an act of Congress; but this is
the first time the Port Authority has acknow edged that for the
record. The maritinme union information is accurate, which does
not nean that it is a showstopper, it neans that the Port
Aut hority shoul d approach those other unions and try to get the
support it needs. The key is to nmake the project comercial, to
get the per-unit cost of production down to the point that
sonmebody is going to ship gas on this line. To put it in very
sinple terns, if it is conpetitive, shippers will want to ship
on this line and, if you can get it going two or three years
earlier, everybody wins. If it is not conpetitive, you nust get
it online two or three years earlier in order to beat the

conpetition so shippers will have to use it. In that case, the
shippers will sign an FT contract to sell gas early, but then
will be selling gas at a loss for the next 30 years. They are

banking on the increnental advantage of those three years. So
the first and forenost thing this project has to do is get
conpetitive.

CHAI R SEEKINS commented that not all of his colleagues believe
in net present val ue either.

10: 02: 42 AM

SENATOR WAGONER said that, when he was at an energy conference
i n Washi ngton DC about two years ago, he and several other state
senators asked Senator Ted Stevens if the Port Authority would
be able to get a Jones Act waiver and were told that it would
not happen. He said he thinks that the Port Authority will have
to work with Senator Stevens on this reflagging issue.

10: 04: 15 AM

MR. WALKER agreed with Senator Wagoner and said that was one of
the reasons they adjusted their plan. He comrented that one of
the things they suffer fromis that they put out a great deal of
information, but it isn't always used in the Port Authority’s
best interest. He said that the Jones Act issue is one they have
addressed fully, and they have recently received a resolution of
support from the Seafarers International Union. He thinks they
are lining up the appropriate issues, and they plan to address
this with Senator Stevens soon. He rem nded the conmittee that
Senator Stevens was a huge help to the project with regard to
| oan guar ant ees.

10: 05: 49 AM

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -12- August 25, 2006



MR. PORTER said he wanted to follow up on M. Wil ker’s comrent
about information utilization, and said that there is a |evel of
m strust that is hindering communications. He noted that there
have been tines when the adm nistration has asked for additional
information to try to understand the project and been told it is
confidential, perhaps partially because the Port Authority is

afraid it wll be wused against them That is not the
admnistration’s intent, and for this project to nove forward
will require a greater |level of trust.

10: 06: 36 AM

MR. SHI PKOFF said he wanted to provide clarification on one of
the points M. Marks brought up. The CDS for the ships in
guestion has been repaid, a condition of them being flagged out
of the trade.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if there were any nore questions on the
Jones Act or shipping before the discussion noves on to other
t hi ngs.

10: 07: 12 AM

MR. MARKS went back to page 20 of Dr. Finizza s presentation, to
the discussion of Internal Rate of Return (IRR). He said that
66.9 and 74.8 percent are very high and, although Dr. Finizza
doesn’t place nmuch value in IRR sone people will focus on those
high nunbers. He thinks Dr. Finizza calculated it wth the
producers paying the tariff over tine instead of up-front, which
results in higher figures. He believes that nobst corporations
capitalize that conmtnment up front and wondered if Dr. Finizza
woul d address that issue.

10: 09: 41 AM

DR, ANTHONY FI N zZzZA, Consultant, Econ One Research, Inc. said
that, on page 20, he showed sonme |IRR s when conparing how the
two nodels he was evaluating were performng, but that is the
only place he used them because he does not feel that IRR is
going to be helpful in this case. To illustrate, he said that if
the IRR is calculated as M. Marks suggested and the LNG project
is scheduled to start three years before the highway project as
proposed by AGPA, but there is a 1-yr delay in the LNG project,
the IRR goes up. It does not seem hel pful that, when the project
is not on target, the IRR would be higher, which is why he did
not use that cal cul ati on nore extensively.

MR. MARKS agreed that that IRR has limted applicability, but it
is an inportant nmetric for the specific question of whether a
project can repay its investors. he sinply cautions the

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 13- August 25, 2006



committee not to look at a 65 percent IRR and get carried away
with how great it is, because if one capitalizes the comm tnent,
it is much | ower.

DR. FINIZZA rem nded M. Mrks that this is not an analysis of
the Port Authority project; it is an analysis of two nodels.

10: 12: 12 AM

MR, SHI PKOFF said that, if he understands M. Marks’ argunent
correctly, he is saying that the proper way of [|ooking at
returns to the producers is to include all of the mdstream
conmponents into the overall return. The conceptual problem with
that approach is that it is blending two very different types of
projects with very different risk profiles. He pointed out that
m dstream conponents are regulated and generally obtain |ower
returns because of the nature of those investnments. If they are
bl ended with the upstream it drags the upstream returns down.
In response to M. Marks statenent about capitalization of the
firm transportation conmtnments (FTR), there is sonme truth to
that; but sonme of Econ One’'s slides illustrate very effectively
the essential difference between including the obligation into
an integrated project and treating the upstream as separate,
while taking into account the conmtnments to supply gas and to
pay the tariff.

10: 14: 47 AM

DR FINIZZA said he agrees with M. Shipkoff, and if the
anal ysis were sinply conparing the highway |line against simlar
projects he would engage in this argunent; but he said he does
not want to spend a lot of energy proving a neasure that he
doesn’t think will be useful.

10: 15: 30 AM

MR. VAN TUYL said that M. Marks and others have suggested how
t he producers mght | ook at economcs, so he thought it would be
appropriate to provide a producer’s point of view The critical
observation is that the <cost of the firm transportation
obligations has to be recognized when |ooking at project
econom cs or upstream economics. The mdstream and upstream
investnments are |inked, because the wupstream owners of the
resource only have the mnmidstream investnent due to a firm
transportation commtnent, which has value to those seeking a
| oan; therefore, it has a cost to those who make the obligation.
He said that M. Marks is right that it is typical to capitalize
the cost of that obligation. M. Shipkoff is also correct that
the nature of the two cash streans nay have different risks, so
a nore rigorous analysis mght include a dual discount approach

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -14- August 25, 2006



to reflect the profile of each of those obligations. The bottom
line is that you can't ignore it; and it seens that nuch of this
analysis, in |looking at the upstreamreturns, sinply ignores the
fundamental commtnent that is made by the resource owners.

10: 17: 38 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT prefaced his question by saying that type of
conmmtnent is made on all the pipelines BP ships on, and BP
doesn't own them He asked M. Van Tuyl why this one is
different. He noted that Exxon is very strident that this isn't
to be treated as a debt, and the state’ s independent consultants
say that it is noted on the bal ance sheet, but is not |isted as
a debt.

MR. VAN TUYL replied that this is not a unique valuation; it is
done for every pipeline project that BP invests in. There are
exanples of projects like this that are not sinply noted, but
end up on the balance sheet and are classified under
international GAAP as debt-like paynents. The appropriate
treatnent of them whether they end up on the balance sheet,
noted, or as footnotes, is that they are treated like a debt
because they are actual obligations. There are different nethods
for calculating themin project econom cs.

MR. MARKS followed up by saying that he would supply docunents
from GAAP and Mody, and chapters from financial textbooks on
how | ong-term purchase obligations |like the tariff are treated
financially. The reason these don’t show up on the bal ance sheet
is that, per GAAP standards, unless the commtnent involves 90
percent of the life of the asset or 75 percent of the asset
value, it appears in the notes. Just because it is off-bal ance-
sheet debt, does not mean it isn't debt.

10: 20: 49 AM

MR. DI CKINSON said that, as the only CPA at the table, he wanted
to point out that the notes are an integral part of the
financial statenent, but cautioned the comittee not to get
caught up in accounting treatnent issues. He said there are two
i nportant points here, one is balance sheet inpairnent, that is,
what will those long-term financing conmtnents do over tinge;
another is how financial analysts |ook at those conmtnents
relative to the conpany’ s position.

10: 22: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY asked M. Dickinson if he supports pitching
| RR over the bank and using the cash flow analysis, as Dr.
Fi ni zza reconmended.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -15- August 25, 2006



MR. DI CKI NSON responded that he does not believe Dr. Finizza is
suggesting that they pitch IRR out, but that each of these
financial nmetrics has a place, and one has to decide which
metric and which criteria are inportant. He thinks Dr. Finizza
was saying that, depending upon what one is conparing, IRR
becomes a better or worse neasure. IRR is good for valuing a
project, but beconmes problematic when conparing projects because
of the reinvestnent problem

10: 24: 01 AM

DR. FI NI ZZA commended M. Dickinson for his clear and accurate
explanation. He thinks it is better to avoid using that neasure
on this type of conparison to avoid having people choose the
nunbers they Iike.

10: 25: 16 AM

MR. SH PKOFF said he agreed with M. Dickinson that the
accounting treatnent of these obligations is of secondary
inportance to the cash flow side and analyzing the project’s
conpetitiveness. He said he is not arguing that conmtments on
the firm service obligations should be ignored in the analysis;
but nmaking those is not the same as investing in the mdstream
infrastructure. Part of the reason wupstream investnment 1is
riskier than mdstream investnent, is that they have to nake
firm service obligations. In effect, the upstream shippers are
| everagi ng agai nst the mdstream infrastructure, which increases

their risk, therefore their expected return on capital is
hi gher .

10: 27: 11 AM

MR. MARKS conmmented that there is an old adage in finance that
you can’t make a bad project good by borrowing noney. |If,

instead of paying off the $24 billion to build a project, you
borrow it, your IRR goes way up and it | ooks good. There are two
reasons why that does not work. First, the long-term FT
commitments are debt that inpacts the credit-worthiness of a
conpany. Second, if your tariff includes both principal and
interest, you're paying off the interest of the weighted average
cost of capital so your hurdle rate becones the cost of equity
itself.

10: 29: 42 AM

MR.  SH PKOFF said that, as Senator Therriault pointed out,
upstream production conpanies engage in FTR with third parties
all the tinme. No one has suggested that it would be unique for a
third party to provide the mdstream service to the upstream

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 16- August 25, 2006



producers, and the inherent increase in risk to them because
they are leveraging off the mdstream infrastructure 1is
reflected in the risk profile of the upstream investnent. But,
if one ignores this issue and rolls the entire mdstream
infrastructure into this project, the returns still |ook good

He said that, either way, he is not sure what the issue is.

10: 30: 52 AM

MR. VAN TUYL said that wearlier, WM. Shipkoff presunmed his
agr eenent W th t he assertion t hat firm transportation
obligations are treated differently from a cash obligation or
cash stream generated by a project, and he wanted to be clear
that he does not agree with that assertion, they are a debt
obl i gati on.

At ease 10:31:31 AMto 10: 43: 33 AM

MR. MARKS prefaced his comments by saying that he believes the
public concern is advanced when people understand the conplexity
of these issues. He said it has been pointed out that the price
of gas in Asia is generally tied to oil prices, and nost of it
is sold on contract. What ensues from that is that prices in
Asia are not set by supply and demand, so just because prices
are high in Asia does not nean demand wll be there. So,
al though prices are high, it does not necessarily open up
opportunity for a diversion option. In addition, when diverted
oil does show up for sale in Asia, it is outside the realm of
the contract, not tied to oil prices, and subject to
conpetition. In that dynamc, it is the lowest priced bidder
that comercializes the gas. Accordingly, any value that can be
realized from a diversion option of Al aska gas would be very
smal | .

10: 46: 16 AM

MR. SHI PKOFF said that it was widely reported that, during |ast
wi nter, Japan was outbidding the U S. for spot cargos because of
shortages. AGPA is suggesting that Al aska will be one of those
who have opportunity to sell there. Mre inportantly, he
stressed that Dr. Finizza's analysis ignores the value of that
option and still shows the LNG project is very robust.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. Shipkoff to remnd him regarding the
effect of long-term shipping commtnents, how they could divert
some of the gas.

10:47:50 AM

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -17- August 25, 2006



MR. SHI PKOFF replied that, the way it is done contractually is
that the seller has the right to divert but nust conpensate the
buyer for any replacenent gas costs, because the seller has to
obtain the gas somewhere else. He said that their analysis took
into account all of the costs the seller would have to pay,
including the fixed infrastructure capacity reservation.

10: 48: 45 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if it is economc to divert gas, even wth
the cost of buying gas elsewhere, paying for the termnal and
t he diversion

10: 48: 57 AM
MR. SHI PKOFF answered yes, when the price is sufficiently high
to cover your fixed costs.

MR. PORTER commented that, in the winter you can produce gas
better and nay be able to exceed the FT conmmtnents and nove
nore gas. So, it doesn’t always have to be a trade.

MR. SHI PKOFF agreed that a lot of spot trade occurs because of
i ncreased out put.

DR.  FINIZZA asked if M. Shipkoff +took into account the
di scounted price in the diversion market.

MR. SH PKOFF said no, that the analysis assumed the average
Japanese price, and he projected the Japanese |anded prices on
the basis of an assunption of contractual oil prices. One m ght
have to take into account a discount bel ow nmarket price, but he
repeated that the analysis did not rely on the value of the
di version option to nmake the project econonic.

10: 52: 39 AM
MR. PORTER said that one of things the adm nistration is |ooking
at is Costa Azul's intent to be fully subscribed by the end of
year, so that window will close. He thinks they need to | ook at
what the options will be sone tine from now and how to open
t hose doors.

MR. SHI PKOFF rem nded M. Porter that AGPA is negotiating with
Costa Azul regarding their tinme schedul e.

MR. PORTER said he appreciates that because, if you have no gas
now, you can’t subscri be.

MR SHI PKOFF assured himthat Costa Azul knows their situation

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 18- August 25, 2006



10: 54:. 26 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked for questions from nenbers.

10: 54: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said he would like sonme input from
representatives of the Port Authority, the admnistration, and
the producer group. He asked, iif he has gas, and the
constitution says he can maxim ze the revenue for the state of
Al aska, and he can choose to pay $3.55 on the slope, or pay
$2. 17 across the continent, even if they are off by 50 percent
and the Port Authority is right on and gets the gas, the problem
remains $3.55 to $2.17. He said he understands the timng wth
regard to NPV, but is having a hard tine understanding how to
make it a comrercial deal initially.

10: 56: 38 AM

MR. VAN TUYL replied that BP wants to deliver gas to narket at
the | owest possible cost. BP has tried to nmake LNG work over the
years and was a nenber of the LNG sponsor group, but it shifted
its focus to the gas pipeline when it realized it could deliver
gas to the Lower 48 and the West Coast |lower than it could LNG

He continued that Representative Sanuels referenced a 5.5 Bcf/d
project, which would be the 1.2 LNG and the 4.3 gas projects,
and that raises questions in his mnd, because it takes a
fundamentally different gas treatnment plant to process gas to
LNG specs than it does to process gas to pipeline specs. LNG
doesn’'t tolerate COF or aromatics, so it is a different process.

10: 58: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS asked if it is possible to have a gas
treatment plant (GIP) on the slope that nmakes it pipeline
quality, and a fine-tuning nechanismin Delta.

10: 58: 50 AM
MR. VAN TUYL responded that it is possible to treat the gas
anywhere along the line; the challenge is to dispose of the

additional CO. On the slope, there are nultiple options for
handling that, but taking it off downstream would present
problens for OO disposal. He commented that the other concern
with a 5.5 Bef/d project is that the pipeline from the North
Slope to Delta is fundanentally different from what the
producers have discussed. To get all 5.5 Bcf/d to Delta would
require them to put in internediate conpression, so the
downst ream system woul d no | onger be expandabl e, which woul d not
be good for stinulating exploration.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -19- August 25, 2006



10: 59: 56 AM

MR. WALKER said he believes the LNG project is very conpetitive
with the highway project, but AGPA approaches it from a
different standpoint. He remnded the commttee that there were
efforts to run the TAP |line through Canada, but those efforts
wer e defeated because the state wanted the largest footprint to
be in Alaska. They are afraid of losing an opportunity for
Alaska if it holds out waiting for a highway project that there
is no commtnment to build and that depends on one market. The
LNG project offers Alaska the best of both markets and the
opportunity to enhance the economics of the highway route by
bringing gas to Alaska through Southcentral for export sooner
than |ater. AGPA does |ook at the wellhead nunbers, but that
isnt only vyardstick for nmeasuring the maxinmm benefit for
Al aska. If this project is pushed out to 2025 or later, the
situation will be very different. He thinks the state can have
it all if it noves quickly to take advantage of the LNG option
now and pave the way for a pipeline and hi ghway project |ater.

11: 03: 10 AM

MR. SHI PKOFF said that the differential in the netback is not as
wi de as Representative Sanuels suggests and pointed to Econ
One’s presentation for that figure. He also said that he
believes that, with further technical work, that differential
will narrow further and possibly be elimnated. Regarding the
technical issues of LNG spec gas and pipeline spec gas, he
offered to arrange for Bechtel’'s engineers to neet with the
producers to address those.

11: 04: 21 AM
DR. FINl ZZA said that any analysis wll show that,
cont enpor aneously, an LNG netback w Il be lower than a highway

line netback, and it is only when they diverge that the value
changes. As M. Porter pointed out yesterday, one would have to
be sure that the 3-year advantage is permanent, that there is no
| eakage, and that the differential is very snmall before entering
into this. Mst inportantly, the producers have to accept this
as a viabl e busi ness proposition.

11: 06: 16 AM

MR, DICKINSON said that, if the base case shows one project is
clearly nore conpetitive than the other, the question is whether
there are intangibles. M. Walker said that the LNG project is
conpetitive, so there nmust be other things that should be | ooked
at. Clearly, nore options are better than fewer; so there is the
diversion option. If there is a pipeline that heads toward the

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 20- August 25, 2006



AECO hub, it would probably preclude the ability to go into
Asian markets; but he does not think the baseline pipeline to
Chicago is what is going to be built, rather there wll be a
pipeline to AECO and nultiple options from there. He does not
think it’s a choice between a single market and nmultiple
mar kets, but between different nmultiple markets available to the
two projects. If the best use of the gas is the md-continent
market, and the project has to go down to Kitimat and regas
after the short voyage back into AECO it would be getting to
the sane hub at a nmuch hi gher cost of transportation.

He added that M. Shipkoff is absolutely right in saying that
further technical work on both of these projects nmay narrow or
elimnate the differences between them or it nmay wden them
And while M. Wilker nentioned that Bechtel has already put
about 55,000 hours into this project, the sponsors have put in
over 1,000,000 man-hours, so a huge anmobunt of work has gone into
both projects and further work will refine the nunbers fully.
Both are best estimates at this point.

11: 09: 21 AM
MR. VAN TUYL commented that, regarding the GIP issue, it is
ultimately resolvable, it wll just cost nore and it would be

appropriate to reflect that in a true characterization of the
LNG project. He agreed with M. Walker that it is unwi se to bet
everything on one project and noted that an advantage of the
hi ghway project is that, as the |owest cost project to open the
basin, it makes everything else possible: nore offtake points
and cooperation with interconnecting projects including the Port
Authority’s. So, the highway project does not exclude other
opti ons.

11:11: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLZ said he thinks there is some value in the
Port Authority process, and he is getting the inpression that
the sponsors may be willing to entertain options as well. He
asked if the industry partners are willing to cone back to the
table and work on it.

11:12: 26 AM

MR. VAN TUYL said he was referring to | anguage that is actually
included in the contract, that allows for spin-off projects
including the Port Authority’'s. There is also l|language in the
contract that conmmts the mainline entity to cooperate wth
t hose projects; so, the framework is already in place.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -21- August 25, 2006



MR. DICKINSON said that, with this contract the state is going
to have as high as 20 percent of the gas, and what they do with
it is not part of the fiscal contract. Wat the state decides to
do with it will drive sonme of these deci sions.

11:15: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said he likes lots of options and is glad
to have the opportunity to discuss this one. He also said that
it is inportant to recognize the difference between hostile
guestions and hard questions designed to get at necessary
information. The Port Authority should not take offense because
the legislators are trying to get at what is best for Al aska
and whether AGPA can do what it says it can within the tine
frane stated is a real issue.

11:18: 36 AM
SENATOR WAGONER said that he has a request of t he
adm nistration. He recalled that Tony Palner said every penny

difference in the tariff on the pipeline project will cost the
state $150 million over the life of the project, and $3.55
versus $2.17 calculates out to about $20 billion. He asked if

the industry representatives would get a realistic calculation
for him

11:19: 34 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT said that his constituents are uneasy wth
any proposal going through Canada, and that’s one reason that
the Port Authority proposal is attractive to them He asked the
adm nistration representatives how the state should deal wth
the uncertainty of going through Canada. There is no assurance
that the pipeline can get through Canada in 3 years and the
| egislators have heard that the current contract wth the
producers doesn’t get Alaska anything with regard to Exxon
Canada. He asked if Alaska is going to need additiona
agreenents with Canadi an conpani es and the Canadi an governnent.

11:21: 37 AM

M CHAEL MENGE, Conmi ssioner, Departnent of Natural Resources,
said there is no guaranty (feedback). But there is netback
benefit to Canada in this project, so it is in their interests.
Al so, Canada is the U S. largest trading partner, so preventing
us from noving gas through Canada to the Lower 48 would not be
politic. And finally, this is a transit and not production |ine,
so there are nutual interests and there is a willingness to cone
to an agreenent.

11: 23: 52 AM

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -22- August 25, 2006



SENATOR THERRI AULT asked a question about dealing with Canadi an
subsidiaries of the major producers. (partly indiscern.)

MR. MENGE replied to the effect that it is a nore efficient way
to do it. (partly indiscern.) He said that the admnistration
has spent three years working on this day and night, and they
all would love to fully enbrace the Port Authority plan; but
they have to do what they believe is in the principal best
interest of Alaska. They have |ooked at the Port Authority
project from every angle and sinply do not believe the econom cs
are there.

11:27: 27 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS commented that this is a very conplex issue for
the legislature. He agrees with the underlying premse of the
Port Authority, which was fromits inception to build, or cause
to be built, a natural gas pipeline. No Al askan disagrees wth
that prem se, and he believes that the Port Authority is putting
their project forward because they think it is the best thing
for the people of Alaska. O her people are resisting it because
they believe their plan is best for the people of Alaska. It is
hard, but as a business person he wants to know how nuch it wll
cost to get this nmuch gas in that big a pipe to market every
day. And whi chever project provides the best wellhead value is
his favorite project fromthe start.

He said that the question today is the value of being able to
get gas to market three years sooner; but the whole thing falls
apart if all parties don't cooperate. The producers are saying
that they will get the gas to the offtake in Delta in their pipe
and the Port Authority can take it from there. So, the
di scussion seens to be whether it is the producers’ pipe or the
Port Authority’'s pipe to Delta Junction. From Delta Junction, it
doesn’t appear to be a problem

He stressed that getting the gas, having a defined nmarket,
getting a comercial agreenent, all are necessary to pronote a
project. He said he appreciates the opportunity to discuss this
issue in a roundtable venue. There are huge hurdles, and he
hopes they can be overcone to provide benefit to the state of
Al aska.

11:32: 17 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked if everyone present agrees that the benefit
is to get gas to market sooner.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 23- August 25, 2006



MR. DI CKINSON replied that is one aspect of it, but it would not
make sense to build something two years sooner and spend the
next 30 years paying for it.

CHAI R SEEKINS said he is right, unless those two years paid off
wel | enough to conpensate for the remaining years at a |ower
rate of return.

11:32: 47 AM

KEN GRI FFI N, Deputy  Comm ssi oner, Depart ment of Nat ur al
Resources, added that, looking at Dr. Finizza s nunbers on page
46, the 2013 start date has about a 5 percent inprovenent in NPV
over the highway project. If that 2013 start date slips to 2016,
the project |oses 20 percent of the NPV, about 6 percent per
year conpounded. Even if it started only one year late, in 2014
it would already have |ost any additional value associated with
the early start. While we are | ooking at 3 years, we are | ooking
at a project concept with such fragility that in only one year
t he econom c benefits can be | ost.

11: 34: 03 AM

MAYOR WHI TAKER cl osed by saying that reasonably priced energy to
Al aska is a significant part of the Port Authority’s mssion. He
pointed out that the notivation of the major producers is to
enrich their stockholders, while the Port Authority’s notivation
and nmandate is to ensure that a project gets built for Al askans.
He said his greatest fear is that the nmarket will cone into
equi libriumw thout Al aska s gas.

11: 38: 20 AM
MR. MARKS commented that, if these projects are in conflict, it
is possible that conpeting forces could prevent any project from
being built.

CHAI R SEEKINS thanked all of the nenbers for their input and
asked for final questions.

Adj ourned at 11:40:46 AM

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 24- August 25, 2006



